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Isle Education Trust

Trustees' Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

The trustees present their annual repart together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable company and
the group for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors’ report under company law.

Isle Educalion Trust (IET) currently operates one primary Academy (including a Nursery), one secondary Academy and one
Alternative Provision (AP) unit covering KS2-4. The primary and secondary academies are in Epworth, North Lincolnshire with
the AP being in central Scunthorpe.

South Axholme Academy has a pupil capacity of 965 (plus 200 for 6 form until 31/08/2023) and a roll of 939 (11-16) plus 17 in
6™ form in the school census for October 2022,

Epworth Primary Academy has a pupil capacity of 315 (+ 24 nursery places) and a roll of 293 in the school census for October
2022,

Coritani Academy is funded on a 40 places basis. Some students attend the centre on a full-time basis whereas others attend a
number of sessicns per week,

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

Isle Education Trust was formed on 17th October 2013 when South Axholme Academy (Company Number: 7814150) legally
became a sponsor for Epworth Primary Academy.

The Multi-Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The trustees of Isle Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The
Charitable Company operates under the following names:

s |sle Education Trust;

=  South Axhoime Academy;

«  Epworth Primary Academy;

e Coritani Academy.

Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited Company Registration Number 09937898 (England and Wales} is a private company,
limited by shares. It is a trading subsidiary, wholly owned by IET and was incorporated on 6 January 2016 for the purpose of
building and running a sports facility in the grounds of South Axholme Academy.

Details of the Trustees and Members who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the 'Reference and Administrative Details' on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being
wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Trust's expense to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue
of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which
they may be guilty in relation to the Trust: Provided that any such insurance shall not extend to: (i) any claim arising from any act
or amission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckless
disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of duty or not and (i) provided also that any such insurance shall not extend
to the costs of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as directors of
the Trust. The [imit of this indemnity is £10M (through the RPA system).

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The members as identified on page one may appoint Trustees through such process as they may determine.

The Articles of Association require the members of the Charitable Company to appoint at least three Trustees to be respansible
for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the management of the Trust.

For the 2022-23 period the IET Board had approximately 9 trustees. This is considered an appropriate amount of trustees and
there are currently no plans to recruit further although members can appoint up to 18 trustees.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees (continued)
As there is parental representation at the local governance level the IET Beard does not have elected parents.

The only member of staff on the IET Board is the CEO which is a condition of the Articles. The Trustees may appoint co-opted
Trustees in line with the Articles.

When appointing new trustees, the IET Board considers the skill sets that are required to run a business, ensuring that the
educational input is continually represented through the CEQ. Recruitment can be through advertising, previously we have used
Academy Ambassadors, ward of mouth, writing to businesses/individuals and LinkedIn.

Trustees regularly undertake a skills audit to understand the strengths of the Board in order that when vacancies do arise people
can be recruited in areas where they can bring skills/expertise to strengthen the body further. Before any Trustee is appointed a
meeting/interview would take place with the CEO and Chair of Trustees. Assuming that both parties wish to go ahead with the
recruitment an opportunity would be given to all current Trustees to meet with the potential Trustee before formal appointment.

The term of office for any Trustee is 4 years, with the exception of the CEO who currently remains a Trustee whilst employed by
the Trust in line with the Articles of Association and Funding Agreement. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of
Trustee, any Trustee may be re- appointed or re-elected.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience but would generally include an initial
tour of the Academies with a chance to meet staff and pupils.

This is followed up with a meeting with the CEQ and the Chair of Trustees to cover the following points:

Aims, Objectives of the Trust

Recent Achievements

Strengths/ Areas for Improvement

Results

Overview of Staffing

Curriculum Overview

Key Issues and Priorities

Board of Trustees Structure (and Committee Structure)
Trustee Training Offer f Requirements.

The Trust buys in to an online training package (currently through the National College) allowing all Trustees and govemors to
access relevant training courses. Some of our trustees undertake training for their profession which is also very relevant to IET
and being a board member. Trustees are encouraged to attend any training events including conferences and networking events
which would be beneficial for the role.

The CEO provides regular educational updates on topical matters for the Trustees and Local Governors. Trustees and Local
Governors are required to complete annual skills audits; to engage with regular external reviews of governance; and participate
in training programmes and courses arranged by the trust,

They are provided with details of the Govemors Handbook and other relevant literature to understand the legal implications of
their role. This would typically include:

Minutes of the last two meetings
Scheme of Delegation

Terms of Reference

Schedule of Business

Articles

Funding Agreement

Business Plan,

Each Trustee is also provided with a copy of the Code of Conduct which includes guidance on principles of behaviour including
roles and responsibility. Trustees are expected to complete basic training modules for Safeguarding.

From 2022 there is an IET Governance Induction document providing a checklist of the type of information that may be useful.

All Trustees and Local Govemnors are given access to GovernorHub which is a central secure portal for policies, procedures,
minutes, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to understand their role as Trustees and Local Governors. In
addition to this all Trustees and Local governors are given access to the ‘The Key for Schoo! Governors',
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT {(CONTINUED)

Organisational structure

The agreed organisational hierarchy for the period was as shown below:

IET Members

South | | :
- Axholme & - Coritani MOC
' Epworth AOC r

The Isle Education Trust Board meets at least 6 times per year. The Board has established an overall framework for the
governance of the Academies and has determined which committees are required at Board level, the membership of these
committees, the terms of reference and procedures of these committees and any other groups.

The Board receives minutes of the AOC/MOC meetings and also from the Challenge, Support & Intervention {CS[) meetings
which the CEO holds with each academy Principal. The Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform
specific tasks over a limited timescale. A full Scheme of Delegation is reviewed and published annually.

The Isle Educatieon Trust Board has overall responsibility for:

Ensuring a medium / long term vision is in place and communicated

Ensuring a strategic plan and deliverables to achieve the vision

Setting challenges and ensuring continuous improvement via appropriate Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Appointment of key personnel and determining arrangements for appointing all other personnel
Considering whether to exercise delegation powers

Holding the CEO and senior staff to account

Approval of the overall and individual Academy budgets

Establishing financial limits of delegated authority

Monitoring all financial elements

Approving and monitoring the Academy/Trust Improvement Plans

Deciding whether to collaborate with other organisations

Tracking/monitoring pupil progress/exam results

The constitution of the Trust Board and its AOC/MOCs

Approving the statutory accounts

Setting/Approving policy.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees' Report
For The Year Ended 31 Augqust 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Organisational structure (continued)

The diagram below shows the committee structure that was in place 2022-23;

[ET Members

Audit, Risk & CEO Performance
Compliance Management Pay Committee Hearings
Committee Meeting
CEOCSI Appeals

* Cotitani
MOC

‘Epworth & SAX
A0C

A Pay Committee meets 2-3 times per year with the remit to approve cost of living pay increases and all other pay related items.
This committee meets after the Teachers’ appraisal cycle has completed to enable threshold applications across the Trust to be
levelled and agreed.

The Appeals Committee meets as required with a remit;
To deal with any appeal on a range of issues to include: pay/grading, redeployment/redundancy, grievance appeals, collective

disputes, disciplinary issues, complaints, fixed term contracts and any appeal by the CEOQ regarding the performance management
process.

A CEO Performance Management Committee meets annually:
To give consideration to the performance management of the CEO and the associated pay.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee meets 3 times per year with a remit:

Audit
¢ To consider and advise the IET Board on the Trust’s annual and long-term audit programme
e To monitor and review procedures for ensuring the effective implementation and operation of financial systems and

controls, on a regular basis, including the implementation of bank account arrangements and, where appropriate to make
recommendations for improvement

« To review the effectiveness of the Trust's internal control and risk management systems established to ensure that the
aims, objectives and key performance targets of the organisation are achieved in the most economic, effective and
environmentally sustainable manner

¢ Torecommend to the IET Supervisory Board the appointment or reappointment of the auditors

« To oversee the Trust's relationship with the external auditor including terms of engagement, agreement of fees, annual
assessment of independence and objectivity of the auditor and any ethical guidance relating to non-audit work
undertaken and rotation of audit partners

= To agree with the external auditor, the nature and scope of each forthcoming audit and to ensure that Trust staff co-
operate fully with the auditor

+« To meet with the external auditor to discuss the auditor's remit and any issues arising from the audit

= To consider the review of the audited financial statements and Board reports provided by the Trust's external auditors
and to make recommendations in relation to their acceptance to the Board
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees' Report
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Organisational structure {continued)
Audit {continued)

To consider and address issues raised in any management letter issued by the external auditors following an audit

To review annually internal audit requirements to determine required scope and most effective means of delivery

To review and monitor management's responsiveness to internal audit findings and recommendations

To ensure that the Trust’s internal audit service has appropriate access to information, adequate seniority, is free from
management and other restrictions and is independent of activities under audit

+ To ensure that the internal auditor and any external specialist auditor have direct access to the Committee and to the
Chair of the Board of Directors and are able to meet without management being present.

Risk
* Toreview the IET Risk Register and make recommendations about risk management to the Board

s To review the operation of the Trust’s Code of Practice for Board members, Code of Conduct for staff and for procedures
such as detecting fraud or whistleblowing.

Compliance
s Toreceive reports and take appropriate action on compliance matters such as GDPR, Health & Safety and Safeguarding
* To make whatever recommendations ta the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit
s To report formally to the Board on its praceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities

To review at least once a year to the Board its constitution and Terms of Reference and recommend any changes
necessary to the Board.

There is no dedicated Appointments Committee. Appointments are made by a panel of senior staff and Trustees and/or
governors, At least one member of the appointments committee must have undertaken recent Safer Recruitment training. Certain
senior posts are appointed by the IET Board (these are listed in the Scheme of Delegation).

Pupil Discipline is dealt with at Academy level by a panel comprising of Governars and senior staff and meets as required.

For the accounting period Academy Oversight Committees (AOCs) were in existence at the local Ievél. With SAX and EPA
operating a shared AQC. Coritani due to its nature has a Management Operating Committee {(MOC).

For |ET the following applies:

= the IET Board is the strategic board and has an overview of all academies within the Trust
s the IET Board holds financial accountability for the Trust
s underneath this sits an AOC or management group.

Each separate group should meet and then feed into the stralegic board each term via the CEQ, with the Board being provided
with the minutes of all AOC/MOCs.

Trustees of the IET Board should not be members of AOCs to ensure that the Board is independent of any particular Academy.
An AQC should have between 7 and 9 people. Trustees can appoint and delegate to AOCs. An AQC s a committee of the Trust,
however unlike other committees there is no requirement to have a majerity of Trustees on the committee. The composition and
rules and regulations of the AOCs are set out in separate Terms of Reference which are approved by the Board of Trustees and
communicated annually.

Trustees can also appoint and delegate to committees and individuals. The Board of Trustees have complete discretion over what
is delegated to each AOC/MOC.

Staff governors are appointed to AOCs through an election process and must be elected by persons who are paid to work at the
academies and is her/himself a paid employee of the Trust. To ensure that every govemor adds value to the AOC a skills audit is
also completed and an interview with the Chair or representative of the Trust takes place. In addition to this the Principal of each
of the Academies by virtue of their role are automatically governors on their AOC. The number of staff governors should not
exceed one third of the total number of governors. All full time and part time members of staff at the academy shall be eligible to
nominate and vote in any election.

AQOCs should include at least 2 Parent Members. Parent members of the AOC or Management Group must be a parent of a
registered pupil at one or mare of the Academies at the time of election. Initially when there is a vacancy parents will be notified
and should write an expression of interest saying why they want to fulfil the role and what skills they bring. Like with staff a skills
audit and an interview also ensures that a governor has skills/experience required by the AOC. [t is accepted that due to the fluid
nature of the provision Coritani may not have 2 parents represented on the management group.

Page 7



Isle Education Trust

Trustees' Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Organisational structure (continued)

The IET Board appoint Trust Governors but the AOC can recommend people to the Board. All types of governors should be
recruited according to the skills required by the AOC and proposed to the IET Board who will conduct a formal interview before
appointing. They will always be a person who in the opinicn of the Board of Trustees is committed to the success of the Academy.

'Co-opted' means a person who is appointed by Governors/Trustees who have not themselves been so appointed. The
Trustees/Governors may not co-opt an employee of the Academy Trust as a Co-opted Governor/Trustees if thereby the number
of Governors/Trustees who are employees of the Academy Trust would exceed one third of the total number of
Governors/Trustees (including the CEO /Principal).

The senior member of staff to whom day to day management of the charity is delegated for the period is Sarah Sprack GEOQ and
Accounting Officer.

Far the year 2022-23 [ET have a Challenge, Support & Intervention approach whereby the CEO meets each Principal/SLT 6-7
times per year with a consistent agenda across the Trust, The CEQ Challenge Support and Intervention framework will provide
all academies with the tools and support necessary for them to move on to the next level with regards to teaching and learning
and ultimately student cutcomes. To capitalise on the expertise within academies whilst also acknowledging that settings will have
individual needs and varying degrees of capacity to support others, the model will need to show some flexibility, but the principles
of challenge, support and intervention (CSl) will underpin all elements of it. The CSI Meeting has the following remit:

« To focus on academy improvement and quality of education
= To ensure that each academy provides a broad and balanced curriculum in line with the requirements of the funding
agreement
= To approve curriculum changes policies
* Toreceive reports from each Academy to include key information — attendance, behaviour, standards, results
» To publish information in relation to the current curriculum provision at each Academy. Such information shall include
details relating to:
o the content of the curriculum;
o its approach to the curriculum;
o the GCSE options (and other Key Stage 4 qualifications) or other future qualifications, as specified by the
Secretary of State, offered by each Academy;
o the names of any phonics or reading schemes in operation for Key Stage 1; and
o how parents (including prospective parents) can oblain further information in relation to the curriculum at each
Academy
« To monitor standards of teaching and pupil attainment/ achievement and ensure suitable reports are produced.

The Principal/SLT have the responsibility of implementing the policies and decisions laid down by Trustees /Governors.

The Trust has centralised several business management functions including Payroll, Finance, Governance, Procurement, Estates,
Health & Safety, IT (including websites) and Human Resources which means that some staff work across the whole Trust and
are classed as centralised services.

For the period 2022/23 the central staff were:

CEQ

CF&00

Head of Payrell & Finance

IET Finance Assistant

IET Payroll Officer

A proportion of Principal of Coritani who performs a Trust wide role as Director of Inclusion
Estates Directors & associated Premises/Cleaning Staff

IET Business Support Manager

IET Trips & Visits Co-ordinator.

Isie Education Trust Enterprises Limited Company Registration Number 09937898 (England and Wales) is a private company,
limited by shares. It is a trading subsidiary, wholly owned by [ET and was incorporated on 6 January 2016 for the purpose of
building and running a sports facility in the grounds of South Axholme Academy.

It is responsible for the pavilion and 3G pitch as well as grounds maintenance. It fulfils these functions on behalf of South Axholme
Academy, Epworth Town Colts and North Lincalnshire Council.

The company is operated by 4 directors and meets termly. The IET Board receive an annual summary report from IET EL as well
as the accounts.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Organisational structure {continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The IET Board take direction from ESFA and the Academy Trust Handbook when selting executive pay. Benchmarking exercises
are completed as a matter of course for any roles. Decisions about the pay and remuneration of key management personnel and
specifically the Chief Executive Officer’s level of pay are made following a robust evidenced based process where the salary is
set to reflect the individual’s role and responsibilities.

Isle Education Trust has its own Pay Policy which applies Trust wide and is reviewed annually. Teaching staff are paid in line with
the Standard Teachers Pay & Conditions unless otherwise stated. For support staff the Trust has developed its own structure and
the majority of staff are now paid in line with this. The trust does not follow NJC scales or recommendations.

Remuneration of teaching and support staff is determined by the board (delegated to the Pay Committee) with due regard to staif
performance and changes in responsibility resuiting from development of the Trust's activities. The Pay Committee receive
recommendations annually and establish that a thorough and fair process has been followed and the policy has been consistently
implemented.

The Trustees do not receive any remuneration, save for those Trustees who are members of staff - who only receive remuneration

in respect of services they provide under their contracts of employment and not in respect of their role as Trustees. Details of their
remuneration are outlined in the Trustees’ Remuneration and Expenses section of the Financial Statements.

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the provisions of the Trade Unicn {Facitity Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, |sle Education Trust confirms
that no employees of the trust were relevant union officials during the period 1 September 2022 — 31 August 2023.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

IET is not part of any federations, it is not connected to any charities and does not have any business sponsors.
Several senior leaders within the IET deliver training programmes from DRET Teaching Schoo! Hub for which the Trust receives
payment.

For the reporting period South Axholme Academy had an SLA with New College Doncaster to help deliver the 6 form element.
IET uses several alternative provisions to ensure the needs of its students are met.

Gne senior leader provides virtual head services to the North Lincolnshire Loca! Authority for which the Trust receives payment.

Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited {IET-EL) runs the subsidiary company which provides services to IET and also purchases
services from IET. Any profits made by the subsidiary company should be transferred to the Trust to further the objectives.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Reporting not required as IET has <250 employees.

IET has a section on HR/Employee engagement as part of its business plan with a timebound plan to deliver. This includes a
relaunch of a trust wide app /aimed at gauging employee maod.

IET have an annual trust training event to which all employees are invited as an opportunity to come together,

Recently a full induction process has been taunched and a trust HR professional has been employed with the remit of improving
employee relations and engagement.

Staff are encouraged to collaborate across the academies and time is permitted to enable this.

IET is a Disability Confident Employer meaning that any disabled person meeting the essential criteria for a post will be guaranteed
an interview.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust

Reponting not required as IET has <250 employees.
|ET follows the Academy Trust Handbook, its own financial reguiations regarding procurement and the scheme of delegation.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Object and Aims
The Company's object ("the Object") is specifically restricted to thefollowing:

To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particutar but without prejudice to the generality of
the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools ("the mainstream
Academies") offering a broad and balanced curriculum or educational institutions which are principally concerned
with providing full-time or part-time education for children of compulsory school age who, by reason of iliness,
exclusion from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive suitable education unless alternative provision
is made for them ("the allernative provision Academies”) or 16 lo 19 Academies offering a curriculum appropriate
lo the needs of ils students ("the 16 to 19 Academies") or schools specially organised to make special educational
provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs (“the Special Academies").

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Our Vision at IET:

To create a thirst for learning in all its forms, enabling students of all ages and backgrounds to dream big and achieve
great things.

Our Aim is to deliver the best quality teaching and learning experiences we can for all stakeholders; students, parents
and staff without losing the personality of the academies in the trust.

At |ET, we Expect Excellence in all things. This is our mind-set.
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The principal object and activity of the Trust as set out in the governing documents is to provide free education and care for pupils
of different abilities between the ages of 4 and 18:

« The academies have a balanced and breadly based curriculum

« The academies provide education for pupils of different abilities
« The academies provide education for pupils who are wholly or mainly drawn from the area in which the school is situated.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report |
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)
In addition to this:

o« The Trust will be at the heart of the community, promoting community cohesion and sharing facilities with other
schools/academies and the wider community

= There will be assessments of pupils’ performance as they apply to maintained schools and the opportunity to study for
external qualifications

« The admissions policy and arrangements for the school will be in accordance with admissions law and the DfE Code of
Practice

= Teachers' level of pay and conditions of service for all employees will be the responsibility of the Trust

s There will be an emphasis on the needs of the individual pupils including pupils with special education needs (SEN)

s There will be no charge in respect of admission to the school and the school will only charge pupils where the law allows
maintained schools to charge

s  The Trust will have an appropriate mechanism for the receipt and management of donations and shall use reasonable
endeavours to procure donations through that mechanism for the purpose of the objects specified in the Articles.

The 3 year aims of |IET are:

e No lost learners
Our academies will work to identify the individual needs of leamers and to provide a learning experience tailored to these
needs to support every child to make the progress they are capable of, regardless of their starting point, background or
personal experiences

¢« Reading and Literacy
Our academies will work to create a love of reading and writing in all our learners, as reading is the single most important
tool that opens a world of opportunities, enabling individuals to reach their aspirations.

= Wellbeing
The wellbeing of staff and learners will underpin all that we do. Emotional, physical and mental wellbeing are key to our
learning community being engaged, happy and successful,

Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard ta the Charity
Commissioner's general guidance on public benefitin exercising their powers or duties. They have referred to this guidance when
reviewing the Academy Trust's aims and objectives and in planning its future activities.

We will;

»  Ensure that what we do is sustainable and that we don't just have a shori-term effect but that we allow strategic thinking
to progress and continually improve the Trust

s Develop local partnerships and ways of working collaboratively in order to provide effective solutions and drive-up
educational standards

* Consolidate existing good practice and further develop transitional projects both across phases and across schools to
provide enhanced leaming opportunities for all children and be an effective use of the wide range of staff skills and good
practice in a cost effective manner

« Raise aspirations within the local community. Our locally based Multi Academy Trust has the means to engage and work
with parents and members of the community in order to heighten awareness and broker the support needed by all our
children

« ldentify where we can invest in our children earlier leading to better outcomes in the face of increasing educational,
economic and social challenges

« Provide development opportunities for all staff in all organisations and across phases to strengthen leadership at all
levels and help schools to recruit high quality teachers in the future. As the largest employer in the area, it is important
to acknowledge the need to recruit and develop high quality support staff

e Provide a quality solution for academies who join the Trust - we are not about forcing a ready-made "off the shelf plan
on to an organization, but are able to recognise difference and adapt accordingly - we appreciate differences whilst
ensuring a common thread of quality.
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and performance

South Axholme Academy was last inspected by Ofsted in January 2023, The judgements are below:

Overall effectiveness Good
The quality of education Good
Behaviour and attitudes Qutstanding
Personal development Good
Leadership and management Good
6 form provision Good

Results for 2023 were again excellent with a Progress 8 score of +0.45 and 94 and 9-5 both above national data.
Attendance was 92.9% against a national figure of 89.3%.
In our last year of A levels all students gained A*-E with 45.78% gaining A*-B and 14.63% A*-A.

In February 2019 there was a short inspection of Epworth Primary Academy The judgement was that the school continues to be
Good.

Resulls for 22/23 were excellent — Progress at KS 2 was +0.8 (reading), +2.8(writing) and +2.1 (Maths).
KS1 outcomes were also good with 79% (reading), 72% (writing) and 83% (maths) reaching expected standards.

The extra curricular programme has expanded with a wide range of opportunities for children including residential trips,
competitions and visits to sporting events.

Coritani Academy received a short inspection from Ofsted in October 2018 and was judged as Good.

For 22-23 all students turned up to sit their exams. Altainment 8 was 35.43% and there were some excellent outcomes with KS2
students being prepared for their secondary schools and KS4 students going on to college.

All KS2 pupils achieved in the KS2 tests and there was a 100% pass rate at GCSE 1-9. Progress 8 was 0.92 {against and AP
average of -3.19).

Attendance is outstanding (comparing with the on-entry data), and behaviour is also outstanding with no suspensions or
exclusions.

To ensure that standards are continually assessed all Academies operate a programme of lesson observations, which are
undertaken by Subject Leaders and Senior Leadership Team.

Continuing professional development for teaching staff has been very successful with all staff participating in structured and
focused training days and twilight sessions. Joint development is now in place across the Trust with key speakers and focus areas.

Key performance indicators

The main financial performance indicator in reporting to the Board of Trustees has been Monthly Revenue against Monthly
Expenditure for key budget headings / items (for example, salaries, building costs, maintenance). Actuals are considered against
forecasts. The view for the current year is analysed along with the rolling 5-year plan to ensure that Trustees can see the longer
term financial picture.

The Board see a consalidated view of the Trust and reports at Academy level. All files are located securely in Microsoft and can
be inspected by any Member/Trustee on request.

Recently financial benchmarking data has been used in order that the Trust can compare itself against other similar Trusts
nationally and locally.

The IET Board have agreed that certain measures that have been used to compare across the academies and benchmark with
similar. These measures include:

Staff costs as a % of total expenditure
Pupit teacher ratio

Level of reserves / cash in hand weeks
Teacher contact time

Average teacher cost
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Isle Education Trust

Trustees’ Report
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key performance indicators (continued)

Proportion of budget spent on leadership

Efficiency metric

Agency spend

Average days' sickness (employee)

Ofsted report

Attendance (student)

% of teaching Good or better

Behaviour

Compliance Measures (e.g. number of data breaches, internal audit observations).

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the Success of the Company

To promote the successes of IET there is an annual communication plan. This highlights for the coming events at the academies
but also is tailored to ensure that the appropriate communities are engaged. For example, employees, students, parents, suppliers
and the local community.

Newsletters and social media are currently the key means of communication externally. Briefings and newsleiters 9In Education
Together) are used for employees.

Financial Review

Most of the group’s income is obtained from the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The group also receives other grants
such as Pupil Premium and Special Educational Needs Funding. These are also restricted. Any other items of funding have been
assigned In the financial statements in accordance with the guidelines set down by SORP.

During the year ended 31st August 2023 the income comprising General Annual Grant, other government, Local Authority grants
and other incoming resources totalled £9.683m. The deficit of income against expenditure for the year was £356,000 before
actuarial adjustments on the Local Government Pension Scheme. The surplus for the year after the actuarial gain of £801,000
was £35435,000. The Trust does not receive any cash donatfons from sponsorships and has not undertaken any investments other
than holding cash funds in a high interest-bearing deposit account,

The accounts include the income & expenditure of the wholly owned trading subsidiary, Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited
which was incorporated on 6 January 2016. The results of the subsidiary are disclosed in note C2.

The group held fund balances of £9.577m at 31 August 2023. This comprised of restricled general funds of £1.660m, unrestricted
general funds of £0.094m, £7.607m on the fixed asset fund and a £0.216m surplus on the pension reserve. During the accounting
period most the group's expenditure has been on salaries. As at 31st August 2023, the net book value of fixed assets was £7.542m.
The Trust's assets were used solely for the purposes of providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of
the Academy Trust, The sports facilities are available for use by the local community. The Academy Trust has adopted the best
practice from the Academy Trust Handbook.

Reserves Policy

The Trust ideally would hold reserves to enable it to plan for future growth and projects. The level of reserves deemed appropriate
for the Trust is approximately one month's operating costs, Based on the budgeted expenditure, this equates to approximately
£740 000. This is monitored closely with individual academies receiving monthly reports. The Trust is continually looking at ways
to improve sustainability by reducing expenditure and optimising income,

The group held total fund balances of £9.577m at 31 August 2023. Of this the actual level of general reserves {restricted and
unrestricted) held by the group was £1.754m. Unrestricted reserves of £94,000 were held at 31 August 2023,

The fixed asset fund represents the net book value of fixed assets plus unspent capital grants. This fund can only be realised from
the sale of the fixed assets.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Reserves Policy (continued)

Under Accounting Standard FRS 102 it is necessary to charge projected deficits or surpluses on the Local Government Pension
Scheme that is provided for our non-teaching staff to a specific restricted reserve. As at 31 August 2023 the surplus on this reserve
amounted to £0.216m. It should be noted however that this does not present the Academy Trust with a current liquidity advantage
as any change in employer pension contributions will be over a period of years as calculated by the scheme actuary using a
different valuation method.

The reserve policy forms part of the financial procedures manual which is reviewed annually.
Investment Policy

The Trust will where possible identify funds surplus to immediate cash requirements and transfer into a deposit account bearing
a higher interest rate. The Trust does not currently invest in any other organisations or projects.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trust has a formal risk management process to assess risks and to implement risk management strategies. The following
categories of risk have been considered all of which have a potential impact on the Trust:

Strategic

Reputational

Financial f Economic/ Contractual
Human Resource based

Safety /Compliance / Regulatory / Legal/ GDPR data breach
Operational / Technological
Physical

Political

Social

Environmental

Competitive.

More specific risks have been identified in each of these areas e.g. travel, Health & Safety. These risks are assessed to identify
the likelihood of cccurrence and the impact if a situation materialised and Board will make recommendations on whether to
transfer, control or accept the risk recognising that not all risks can be eliminated.

The following controls are already in place to try and manage some of the risks:

Introduction of various financial controls to ensure duties are kept segregated and to minimise the risk of Fraud

Internal Audit

Risk Reports as part of the overall Insurance plan

Risk, Compliance and Audit Committee who meet regularly with a remit of reviewing risks and ensuring satisfactory
mitigation.

At a more general level the following are applied to ensure risks are minimised:

Paolicies

Budget Monitoring & Control
Processes

Assessments

Forward planning
Reciprocal arrangements
Supervision

Appraisals

Training

Firewalls.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are as follows:
« Staffing - the success of the Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff and clear succession planning as well as appropriate

development and training. IET is currently facing significant issues with recruiting staff into most positions thought to be
related to the aftermath of Covid and to an extent the location
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued}

e Financial - the Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA, uncertainty
regarding National Insurance, Pension contribution rates and the need to spend on the IET Estate

¢ Reputational - the continuing success of the Trust is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient number
by maintaining the highest educational standards

¢  Pupil Numbers — these can have a significant impact

e Safeguarding and Child protection - the Trustees continue to ensure the highest standards are maintained in the areas

of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health and safety and

discipline

Cyber security and the impact of an attack in terms of business continuity

The impact of Artificial Intelligence (Al)

GDPR risks such as data breaches or not fuifilling legal requirements

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - the Trust will appoint internal audit to carry out checks on financial systems and

records.

The Trust will constantly review any new information and assess any major risks to which it is exposed. The Trustees have
implemented several systems to assess and minimise risks, described elsewhere in this report. Adequate insurance is in place
where appropriate. The Trustees examine the financial health every term, reviewing performance against budget and overall
expenditure. The Trustees also review cash flow forecasts and ensure sufficient funds are held to cover all known and anticipated
commitments. At the year end, the Trust has no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors where there would be
a significant effect on liquidity. The Board of Trustees recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit (Local Government
Pension Scheme) represents a significant potential liability. However, as the Trustees consider that the Trust can meet its known
annual contribution commitments for the foreseeable future, the risk from the liability is minimised.

Fundraising

Isle Education Trust runs annual fund-raising events which include sponsored walks and summer fetes. The monies raised
through this are utilised on specific projects such as developing the library at Epwarth Primary Academy. No commercial
fundraisers are used and there is no pressure on anyone to donate.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Reporting not required as IET does not consume more than 40 999KWh of energy in the reporting period.

Plans for future periods

The IET Board have a 5-year strategic plan which is reviewed periodically and has key strands and themes including:
Excellence in Education

Excellent People

Financial Sustainability & Growth

Excellent Facilities and IT
Compliance

In Financial and Business terms further work will take place to centralise and consoclidate functions. Strategic systems for Finance
are now fully implemented. Human Resources and Premises will be implemented to provide Trust-wide information. New income
streams will be explored and further collaboration is likely to occur.

The Trust will continue to improve the levels of performance of its students at all levels. The Trust will continue to aim to attract
high quality teachers and support staff to deliver its objectives. The Trust is keen to grow and collaborate with other local schools
and so this will be a further focus area for the future.

1ET is outward-facing and seeks opportunities in the changes arising from Government policies — it currently has two significant
growth projects under consideration and is providing cutreach school improvement support to severai local schools under an
ESFA Service Level Agreement.

The intention of the IET Board is to remain as a small, local trust ensuring fi nanmal sustainability and excellent outcomes for our
sludents.
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Funds held as custodian for others

The Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.
Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:
+ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
» the trustees have taken all steps that they cught to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.
Kingswood Allotts, having expressed their willingness to continue in office, will be deemed reappointed for the next financial year
in accordance with section 487(2) of the Companies 2006, unless the charitable company receives notice under section 488(1)
of the Companies Act 2006.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company directors, on 20
November 2023 and signed on the board's behalf by:

Vit

P Barratt - Chair
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Isle Education Trust

Governance Statement
For The Year Ended 31 Augqust 2023

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Isle Education Trust has an effective and appropriate
system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framewaork for
governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO as accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls
conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and
responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Isle Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the Statement of
Trustees Responsibilities, The board of trustees has formally met 7 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meelings
of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee ftended
P Barratt {Chair) 717
T Bean 6/7
J Stables 517
S Holt 6/7
L Smith 6/7
S Sprack 7/7
A Matthews 747
R Scutt 13/3

The composition of the board of trustees has been stable during the 12-month pericd. IET lost a couple of experienced trustees
who brought their financial and employment law skillset to the meetings. We will continue lo try and recruit against these skill sets.
A new trustee was appointed mid-way through the period who brings educational experience and challenge to the team.

The Board has a diverse role and works in line with the scheme of delegation. It receives reports from the Principals, CEO and
CF&OD0 in a standard format and in a timely manner to help with decision making.

Reporting to the board is in a standard format and comprises of two main sections:

s CEO report - including details of academy improvement strategies, outcomes, behaviour, personal development and
general infarmation about the academies. There is also a section of trust growth at every meeting and an update on
strategic projects

e CF&O0O report — this covers the financial reporting, estates, HR, compliance at a strategic level.

The reports included funding and a full budget monitoring with commentary, thus ensuring a consistent format. A consolidated report
is also provided to the IET Board at meetings and sent directly to the Chair manthly.

IET reviews its confiict-of-interest policy annually. All members, trustees and management are required to complete a conflict-of-
interest form ensuring transparency in terms of other employments, relationships and other significant factors. This is compiled into
a register and published on the IET website.

At each meeting there is a section whereby attendees can declare any pecuniary/business interests on that agenda. Where a
conflict exists, the person would either a) not participate in the discussion/decision or b} leave the room for that part of the agenda.
If a conflict arose unexpectedly people are encouraged to declare this, and the Company Secretary would alert attendees and the
appropriate action taken.

The Trustees are not involved in the subsidiary management thereby avoiding any conflict,

All trustees are required to complete a Register of Pecuniary Interests form annually. The opportunity to declare any pecuniary
interests is provided at all meetings.
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Governance (continued)

The Academy/ Management Oversight Committees (AOC/MOC) model is now embedded and working well with significant
recruitment at the local level. This has been fully documented in the following documents:

s |ET Terms of Reference
e |ET Schedule of Business.

This means a greater degree of fransparency in terms of where items are discussed and discharged.

The AOC/MOCs meet al least twice per term. The Board has established an overall framewark for the governance of the Academies
and has determined which committees are required at Board level, the membership of these commitiees, the terms of reference
and procedures of these committees and any other groups.

The report from the extemnal review of govemnance (took place 2021-22) was received during the period and the board have
discussed this and acticned the reievant points. Some of the actions will be implemented as and when IET grows, for example the
need for separate Finance & Curricujum Committees.

The IET Board and the associated also complete self-assessment /evaluation against generic 21 questions on an annual basis and
spend time reviewing the results. ,
The Compliance, Audit & Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees, its purpose is to analyse risks, ensure
compliance and scrutinise audit reports. The committee met twice during the period.

Trustee Attended
J Stables 2/2
S Sprack 212
A Matthews 2/2

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved
in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic
year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where
available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Robust governance and oversight of IET finances

Centralising key services

Pooling resources and GAG to ensure the Trust as a whole is salvent for the next 5 years
Streamlining processes and using strategic systems

Ensuring the trust is compliant with legistation

Ensuring our buildings and estates are safe for all users

The Trustees are cognisant of their responsibilities in ensuring that the Trust’s resources are managed effectively, to strive for the
best possible outcomes for pupils, achieved at reasonable cost, They are committed to ensuring that governance of IET financial
management is robust,

Trustees have the responsibility of providing assurance over the suitability of, and compliance with, financial systems and controls.
The Board approves the budget each year and is mindful of the need to balance expenditure against income to ensure the Trust
remains a 'going concern’. The IET Board also receives and approves the Annual Accounts and the External Auditors Management
Report.

Ensuring the operation of the Trust demonstrates good value for money and efficient and effective use of resources

The Trust takes a prudent approach fo expenditure, Most of the budget is spent on staffing, and staffing structures are reviewed
regulary to ensure that they are fit for purpose and can adapt and respond to support the successful attainment of the objectives
within the Trust.

The Trust has a high proportion of skilled and experienced teaching and support staff, who are very effectively deployed to provide
best value. Teachers’ performance management / appraisal systems are in place.
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Review of value for money (continued)

Ensuring the operation of the Trust demonstrates good value for money and efficient and effective use of resources (continued)

The Trust's Financial Regulations define responsibilittes for each person involved in the administration of schocls finances to avoid
the duplication or omissions of functions and to provide a framework of accountability for directors, govermors and staff. A
documented scheme of delegation ensures that contracts and services are reguiarly appraised and renegotiated when appropriate
to ensure value for money. Individual budget holders are held accountable for the use of their budgets and are helped by an
experienced finance team in sourcing best value. Recently budgets have been profiled to assist with cash flow.

The Trust regularly benchmarks financial performance against other Academy Trusts to demonstrate that the Trust provides good
value for money.

Tender exercises are regularly undertaken to ensure that high value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a regular
basis to ensure that long term cantracts remain competitive. More recently DfE frameworks have been used for procurement.

As a Multi Academy Trust the Business team are now able to lever additional benefits through greater purchasing power and
economies of scale.

Maximising income generation

The Trust receives most of its funding from the ESFA and is currently looking at how it can try to generate more for itself.

Coritani is able to generate income through its business model for billed sessicns, Catering has been brought in house with a view
that it will make a modest surplus that will be reinvested in the trust.

Reviewing controls and managing risks

Monthly budget monitaring reports are produced and reviewed by the Principal of each Academy and the IET CF&QOQ and any
necessary remedial action taken to address any significant variances that may have an impact on the budget out-turn.

Reviewing operation to maximise use of resources

The Principals review expenditure within each budget heading annually and make adjustments based on the effectiveness of
strategies infroduced in previous years, curriculum offer and any new strategies identified in their Academy Improvement Plans.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reascnable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust
policies, aims and objectives, fo evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and econcmically. The system of internal control has been in place in Isle Education Trust for
the period 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of the view that there is a formal
on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period
1st September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financtal statements.

Risk registers are now in place at academy level and significant risks filter through to the trust risk register which is reviewed annually
by the IET board and at each meeting of the risk, compliance and audit committee.

This process is regularly reviewed by the beoard of trustees.
The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. it includes:
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The risk and control framework (continued)

¢ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and pericdic financial reports which are reviewed
and agreed by the board of trustees

e regular reviews of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital

works and expenditure programmes

setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has bought in an internal audit service from
Farrester Boyd Chartered Accountants. The role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of
checks on the academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

IT Audit

Malware

Back ups

Incident response

Business continuity

Bank procedures
Procurement

Staff expenses

«  Procurement

s Credit card

«  Payroll — Starters and leavers
s Fixed assets

« Gifts and hospitality

= Management reporting and KPlIs,

On a regular basis, the auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the Compliance, Risk and Audit Committee on the operation
of the systems of contrals and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual
summary report to the committee oullining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the
committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year
in question the review has been informed by:

» the work of the extemnal auditor

» the work of the internal auditor

+ the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal contral framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control and a plan
to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 20 November 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

P o

P Barratt — Chair

Spaei_

8 Sprack — Accounting Officer
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Statement on Reqularity, Propriety and Compliance
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

As accounting officer of Isle Education Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of
trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance
with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement
between the academy trust and Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

1 confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds
by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust's
funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If
any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

S

S Sprack - Accounting Officer

20 November 2023
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The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the trustees
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income
and expenditure, of the charitable company and the group for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the
trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

e observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company's and the group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and the group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irrequiarities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 20 November 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Phos/—

P Barratt - Chair
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Isle Education Trust

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Isle Education Trust {the 'charitable company') for the year ended
31 August 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheets, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framewocrk that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinian the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's and group’s affairs as at 31 August 2023 and
of the group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)} and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon. Other information includes the trustees’
report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report), the governance statement, and the Accounting Officer's
statement on regularity, propriety and compiiance.

Cur opinion cn the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materiai misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’
report) for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directars’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; ar
- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Isle Education Trust

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directars of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contral as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company's and group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed auditor under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with this Act.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
respansibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The specific procedures
for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims;

- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

- Enquiry of management to identify any instances of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

- Performing audit work over the risk of management override of controls, including review of nominal ledger transactions and
other adjustments for appropriateness and evaluating the rationale of any significant transactions outside the normal course of
aperations;

- Reviewing accounting estimates for bias, and reviewing management assumptions and judgements;

- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a
material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with reguiation. This risk increases the more that compliance
with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely
to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than
errar, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, cmission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has heen undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

1041V 5

Mark Garrison BCom FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Kingswood Allotts Ltd, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Sidings Court

Lakeside

Doncaster

South Yorkshire

DN4 5NU

15 /l\ {'Zc;2_7>
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Isle Education Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Reqularity to Isle Education Trust and the Education
& Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 11 July 2022 and further to the requirements of the Education
and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out
an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Isle
Education Trust during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions confarm to the authorities which govern them,

This report is made solely to Isle Education Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Isle Education Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Isle Education Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion
we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of Isle Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Isle Education Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 September 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdem by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain informaticn and explanations
in arder to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently -
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a
reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the charitable
company's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conciusion includes:

- Enquiry of officers of the academy trust

- Review and testing of income and expenditure for compliance with the funding and other agreements, the
Academy Trust Handbook and the academy trust's system of controls

- Examination of relevant documents

- Review of the activities carried out by the academy trust

- Review of the delegated authorities set out in the Academy Trust Handbock

- Review of governance arrangements in accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook

Conelusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant \C.\r\bsw-w& M s [ké\

Kingswood Allotts Ltd
Chartered Accountants
Sidings Court
Lakeside

Doncaster

South Yorkshire

DN4 5NU

2% [ ke
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Isle Education Trust

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities

{Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM

Donations and capital grants 2
Charitable activities

Funding for the academy trust's

educational operations 3
Other trading activities 4
Investments 5
Total

EXPENDITURE ON

Charitable activities

Academy trust's educational
operations 7

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised

dains/{losses)

Actuarial gainsflosses on defined
benefit schemes 22
Net movement in funds
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD

For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

Unrestricted
fund
£'000

15

115
__40

170

173

(3)

Restricted
funds
£000

8,958

46

9,004

9,178

(175)

D1

726

1,150

1,876
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Fixed Asset
fund
£000

509

687

(178)

(178)

7,785

7,607

2023
Total
funds
£'000

524
8,958

161
__40

9,683

10,039

(356)

901

545

9,032

9,677

2022
Total
funds
£'000

256

8,187

161

8,608

9,237

(629)

3,798

3,169

5,883

9,032



Isle Education Trust (Registered number: 07814150)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 August 2023

2023 2022
Notes £'000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13 7.542 7615
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 14 3 3
Debtors 15 397 366
Cash at bank 2,574 2,254
2,974 2,623
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one
year 16 (9562) (626)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,022 1,997
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,564 9,612
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more
than one year 17 (203) (45)
PENSION ASSET/LIABILITY 22 216 (535)
NET ASSETS 9,577 9,032
FUNDS 21
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 94 97
Restricted funds:
Fixed Asset fund 7,607 7,785
General fund 1,660 1,685
Pension reserve 216 (635)
9,483 8,935
TOTAL FUNDS 9,577 9,032

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 20 November 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

Q="

P Barratt -Chair

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one
year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more
than one year

PENSION ASSET/LIABILITY

NET ASSETS

FUNDS
Unrestricted funds:
General fund
Restricted funds:
Fixed Asset fund
General fund
Pension reserve

TOTAL FUNDS

Isle Education Trust (Reqgistered number: 07814150}

Notes

C1
C2

Cc3

C5

C6

22

c10

Company Balance Sheet

At 31 August 2023

(1,014)

1,864

8,820

(203)

7,021
1,596

216
8,833

8,833

(675)

1,851

8,847

(45)

(535)

8,267

7,166
1,636

(535)
8,267

8,267

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 20 November 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

e

P Barratt -Chair

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Isle Education Trust

For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash provided by /{used in) operations

Net cash provided by /{used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants
Interest received

Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Loans received
Loans repaid

Net cash provided by/ (used in) financing
activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the

reporting period

Notes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

reporting period

2023
£1000
(551)

(551)

(164)
819
40

695
176

176

320

2,254

2,574

The notes form part of these financial statements
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2022

£'000

64

64

{114)
256

_ 148



Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net incomel/(expenditure)} for the reporting period (as per the statement

of financial activities)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Capital grants

Donated assets

Interest received

Change in stocks

Change in debtors

Change in creditors

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions

Net cash provided by/ (used in) operating activities

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

Cash at bank
Loan
Net cash

Page 30

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
(356) (629)
426 412
(509) {256)
(40) {4)
48 (184)
(270) 216
150 509
(651) 64
At 1 Cash At 31
September flows August
2022 2023
£000 £'000 £'000
2,254 320 2,574
(50) {176) (226)
2,204 144 2,348




Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the charitable company and group, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand (FRS 102)', Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Academies
Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue
as a going concem. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of
authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeakble future and there are no material uncertainties
about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concem
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
Ali income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitliement to the funds, it is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received
for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not urconditional
entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entittement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is unconditional entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the
restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
recelpt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs
of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading
activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and the
proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due
to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income
is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably,
in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations
and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Land and buildings were either gifted or provided on a 125 year lease by North Lincolnshire Council. No premium
was paid on the lease and the rent is one peppercorn. The buildings were valued on conversion or transfer at
depreciated replacement cost and are depreciated over the remainder of its expected life. Land was valued on a
similar basis at conversion or transfer. Land gifted has not been subsequently depreciated. Land leased is
depreciated over the length of the lease.

Other fixed assets transferred on conversion were valued at original cost less depreciation to the date of conversion.

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity
to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been
classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed
to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.

Charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable aclivities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment. Cost includes all expenditure in bringing the asset to its operational location and
condition.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or fram
the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful ecanomic life of the related asset
on a basis consistent with the academy trust's depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the
cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold land not depreciated

Leasehold land over remainder of lease up to 125 years

Leasehold buildings over remainder of life up to 50 years

Inherited buildings over 18 years, being the remainder of the life of the buildings
Furniture and equipment over 5 years

New heating systems over 20 years

Other plant and machinery over 5 years

Computer equipment over 3 years

Sports facilities over 25 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are
brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events ar changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Long leasehold property is held on a 125 year lease from the predecessor local authority on terms which restrict
its use to operation of an academy. It was valued on transfer at depreciated replacement cost.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Stocks
Stock of school uniform is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value on a first in first out basis.

Investments

The academy’s shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited, is included
in the balance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily available
market value and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined by FRS102, The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 15 and C4. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 16,17, C5 and C8. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash
settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or ancther
financial instrument, Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any
impairment.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains
Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
chjectives of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders
where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donar
and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle
the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Staff termination payments are recognised as an expense and liability when the trust has created a constructive
cbligation to incur the costs.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to seftle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
within interest payable and similar charges.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are included in the financial statements from the date control commences until the date control ceases.
Intra-group balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The purchase method is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The identifiable net assets are
incorporated into the financial statements on the basis of the fair value to the group from the effective date of
control.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which
are disclosed in the notes, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

There is a large actuarial gain this year due to the effects of the significant change in the discount rate outweighing
the effects of lower asset returns and increased inflation assumptions. The detailed assumptions for this and the
prior year are disclosed in note 22. Despite the current high inflationary environment, the CPI assumption has
remained at 3%%. The Accounting Standard prescribes quite narrowly how the inflation assumption should be
derived from market value at the year-end date. Therefore the current period of high inflation is somewhat allowed
for insofar as it is captured in long-term market expectations as at 31 August 2023, but is lower than the current
annual rate of inflation. Hence although inflation estimates are over the long term, if the current period of high
inflation continues for a longer period than forecast in the 31 August 2023 assumptions, this will result in a future
actuarial deficit.

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and
the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary
on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer
scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the pericd by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Under FRS102 a pension scheme surplus should only be recognised to the extent that the surplus can be recovered

through reduced future contributions or through refunds from the plan. However, in the opinion of the trustees, a
pension scheme surplus should always be recognised in order to provide consistency and give a true and fair view.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

2023 2022
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Grants - 509 509 256
Donations 15 - 15 -
15 509 524 256
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows;
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Capital grants 509 256
FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
2023 2022
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 6,777 6,777 6,803
Other DfE/ ESFA grants
Free school meals - 50 50 25
Pupil Premium - 231 231 220
Others - 322 322 157
- 7,380 7,380 7,205
Other government grant
Local Authority grants - 586 586 436
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other DfE/ESFA - 28 28 94
Catch up premium - 56 56 3
Other income from educational operations
Catering - 337 337 24
Trips - 216 216 79
Pupil referral charges - 348 348 318
Music tuition - 7 7 -
- 1,578 1,578 982
- 8,958 8,958 8,187
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
2023 2022
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fundraising - 5 5 21
Hire of facilities 22 - 22 23
Other events and activities - 31 31 18
Books, uniforms etc 93 - 93 a5
Sundry income - 10 10 4
115 46 161 161

Page 35



INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest

EXPENDITURE

Charitable activities
Academy Trust's
educational operations
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
£'000 £'000

_ 40 -

Non-pay expenditure

Staff costs Premises Other costs
£'000 £'000 £'000
5,830 396 919
1,534 768 592
7.364 1,164 1,511
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

EXPENDITURE - continued
Net incomef{expenditure) is stated after charging/(crediting):

2023 2022

£'000 £000
Auditor's remuneration 18 17
Audit-related assurance services 5 1
Other non-audit services 1 2
Depreciation - owned assets 426 412
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - -
Operating leases 70 63
Unrecoverable debts - 8

The unrecoverable debts in 2022 includes £7,632 write-off of an invoice issued in 2020 for charges the
customer did not agree with.

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES — ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

2023 2022
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Direct costs - 7,145 7,145 6,584
Support costs 173 2,721 2,894 2,653
173 9,866 10,039 9,237
2023 2022
Total Tatal
£000 £'000

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 1,634 1,326
Depreciation 30 16
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - -
Technology costs - 229
Premises costs 768 617
Legal costs 1 4
Other support costs 535 440
Governance costs 26 21
Total support costs 2,894 2,653

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS
One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received benefits from employment with the academy
trust.
The Principal and staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles
of Principal and staff under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees. Other
trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy in respect of their role as trustees.
The value of trustees' remuneration was as follows:
S Sprack (Chief Executive Officer and trustee)

Remuneration £100,000 - £105,000 {2022: £35,000 - £100,000)

Employer's pensicn contributions £20,000 - £25,000 {(2022: £20,000 - £25,000)
Trustees' expenses
One trustee was reimbursed expenses of £91 incurred in the proper performance of their duties (2022: nil).
Other transactions

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in the Related Party Disclosures note.
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

STAFF
a. Staff costs
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 5,268 4,780
Social security costs 511 463
Pension costs 1,304 1,553
7.083 6,796
Agency staff costs - 262 175
Staff restructuring costs 19 17
7.364 6,988

b. Staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs is a non-statutory/non-contractual severance payment of £5825 (2022:
£6,398).

The academy made exit packages in the following bands:
£0 - £25,000 2

c. Staff numbers
The average number of persons {including senior management team) employed by the charitable company during
the year was as follows:

2023 2022

Teachers 79 84
Administration and support 125 96
Management 19 19
223 199

d. Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022

£60,001 - £70,000 1 1
£70,001 - £80,000 1 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1 -
5 5

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed in the trustees' report. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £1,404,541 (2022: £1,412,949),

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions ogcurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity elerent from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
2022
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total
fund funds fund funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM
Donations and capital grants - - 256 256.
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations

8,187 - 8,187

Other trading activities 143 18 - 161
Investments 4 - - 4

Total 147 8,205 256 8,608
EXPENDITURE ON

Charitable activities

Academy trust’s educational

operations 130 8,677 430 9,237
NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE) 17 (472) {174) (629)
Transfers between funds - (46) 46 -
Other recognised

gains/{losses)

Actuarial gainsflosses on defined

benefit schemes - 3,798 - 3,798
Net movement in funds 17 3,280 (128) 3,169
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward 80 (2,130) 7,913 5,863

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD 97 1,150 7,785 9,032

CENTRAL SERVICES

The Academy Trust has provided the following centra! services to its academies during the year:
- human resources

- financial services

- legal services

- educational support services

- premises and cleaning services

- catering services

- others as arising

The Trust made the following charges for these central services:
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
South Axholme Academy 635 -
Epworth Primary Academy 192
Coritani Academy 75

902

(2022: The Trust did not levy formal charges but received an agreed portion of income and paid staff centrally in
return for these services.)
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Long leasehold

Freehald land landand  Improvements Sports
and buildings buildings to property facilities
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
COST
At 1 September 2022 6,842 3,191 59 811
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2023 6,842 3,181 59 811
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2022 2,772 427 1 192
Charge for year 283 a0 - 33
Eliminated on disposal - - - -
At 31 August 2023 3,055 507 1 225
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2023 3,787 2,684 58 586
At 31 August 2022 4,070 2,764 58 619
Furniture and Plant and Computer
equipment machinery equipment Totals
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
COsT
At 1 September 2022 120 145 31 11,479
Additions - 353 - 353
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2023 120 498 311 11,832
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2022 74 124 274 3,864
Charge for year 11 5 14 426
Eliminated on disposal - - - -
At 31 August 2023 85 129 288 4,280
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2023 35 369 23 7,542
At 31 August 2022 . 46 21 37 7.615

Included in cost or valuation of land and buildings is freehold land of £470,000 which is not depreciated.

14, STOCKS
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Clothing and Uniforms 3 3
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2023 2022
£000 £000
Trade debtors 49 51
VAT recoverable 55 45
Prepayments and accrued income 293 270
397 366
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Loans 23 5
Trade creditors 270 36
Taxation and social security 119 111
Other creditors 131 120
Accruals and deferred income 409 354
952 526
2023 2022
Deferred income £'000 £000
Deferred Income at 1 September 2022 349 45
Resources deferred in the year 406 349
Amounts released from previous years (349) {4%)
Deferred Income at 31 August 2023 406 349

At the balance sheet date Isle Education Trust was holding funds received in advance as follows:

Trip income: £100,000 (2022: £46,000)
Local Authority funding £252,000 (2022: £252,000)
ESFA funding £43,000 (2022: £43,000)

Sundry sales £11,000 (2022; £8,000)

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN YEAR

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Loans 203 45

The loans were obtained from the ESFA Condition Improvement Fund. They are repayable in maonthly
instalments over ten years. Interest is charged at 2.07% pa.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year 70 54
Amounts due between one and five years 8 49
78 103

MEMBERS' LIABILITY
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it

being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Pension asset

Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Pensicn liability

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

2023

Restricted

General Annual Grant {GAG)
Free school meals
Coaronavirus catch up premium
Caoronavirus support

Pupil Premium
Other ESFA grants
Other income
Local authority
Pension reserve

Fixed Assets

Inherited

Capital grants

Other capital donations
Funded from GAG

Unrestricted

TOTAL

2023
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total
fund funds fund funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
- - 7.542 7,542
94 2,400 480 2,974
- (740) (212) {952)
- - (203) (203)
= _216 - 216
94 1,876 7,607 9,677
2022
Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total
fund funds fund funds
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
- - 7,615 7,615
97 2,306 220 2,623
- (621) (5) (626)
- - (45) (45)
- (535) - (535)
97 1,150) 7,785 9,032
Gains,
Brought Incoming Resources losses & Carried
forward Resources Expended fransfers forward
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
1,685 7,070 {7,095) - 1,660
- 50 (50) - -
- 56 (56) - -
- 28 (28) - -
- 231 (231) - -
- 29 (29) - -
- 954 (954) - -
- 586 (586) - -
(535) - (150) 901 216
1,150 9,004 (9,179) 901 1,876
5,036 - (324) - 4,712
2,111 509 (330) - 2,290
542 (20) (32) - 480
96 20 (1) - 115
7,785 509 (687) - 7,607
a7 170 (173) - 94
9,032 9,683 (10,039) 201 9,677
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

2022
Gains,

Brought Incoming Resources losses & Carried
forward Resources Expended transfers forward
Restricted £'000 £'000 £:000 £000 £'000
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,604 6,931 {6,850) - 1,685
Coronavirus mass testing - 3 (3) - -
Coronavirus catch up premium - 3 (31) - -
Coranavirus support - 91 (91) - -
Pupil Premium - 220 (220) - -
Other ESFA grants - 54 (54) - -
Other income - 439 (439) - -
Local authority 90 436 (480) (46) -
Pension reserve (3,824) - (509) 3,798 (635)
(2,130) 8,205 {(8,677) 3,752 1,150

Fixed Assets
Inherited 5,359 - (323) - 5,036
Capital grants 1,879 241 (55) 46 2,11
Other capital donations 567 15 (40) - 542
Funded from GAG 108 - (12) - 96
7,913 256 (430) 46 7,785
Unrestricted 80 147 (130) - 97
TOTAL 5,863 8,608 {9,237} 3,798 9,032

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The restricted fixed assets funds represent the net book values of donated fixed assets and assets purchased from
ESFA and other government grants, which have to be held for the continuing use of the academy, along with unspent
grants for capital purposes.

Transfer to fixed asset funds represents fixed asset purchases funded from other funds.

The balance on restricted general funds represents the balance of unspent grants and cther revenue to be spentin
future periods, including unspent General Annual Grant.

The balance on unrestricted funds represents the results on cther unrestricted activities of the trust including its
subsidiary undertaking.

The trust is not subject to a restriction on the amount of General Annual Grant that can be carried forward.
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Following centralisation of most income and treasury management individual academies no longer have their own
reserves. Fund balances for each academy except central services were therefore £NIL. (2022: £NIL)

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching &
educational Other Other costs
support support  Educational (excluding Total 2022
staff staff supplies depreciation)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

South Axholme Academy 3,674 602 233 861 5,370 4 555
Epworth Primary Academy 1,136 151 50 151 1,488 1,299
Coritani Academy 833 121 26 135 1,115 879
Central Services 187 660 - 793 1,640 2,092
Academy Trust 5,830 1,534 309 1,940 8,613 8,825
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PENSION AND SIMILAR CBLIGATIONS

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (L.GPS) for non-
teaching staff, which Is managed by East Riding of Yorkshire Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019,

Contributions amounting to £131,000 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022: £119,000) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-cut of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions as a percentage of
salary; these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions, Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the vatue of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors.
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published
by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation
are:

- employer contribution rales set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future cantributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £1986,100 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl. Assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed
nominal rate of return including eamnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £865,000 (2022; £830,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out
above the infermation available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £388,000 (2022: £282,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £289,000 (2022; £214,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £99,000 (2022:
£68,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.5% and 25.4% per cent for employers and between
5.5% and 12.5% per cent for employees depending on scale rate.

All the academies within the Trust belong to the East Riding Pension Fund, which is administered by East Riding
of Yorkshire Council.
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, 1o a guarantee that, in the event of
academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pensicn Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department

for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus/ Deficit

Asset/ Liability

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Net interest from net defined benefit asset/liability

Actual return on plan assets

Changes in the present value of the defined benrefit obligation are as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Past service cost
Employee contributions
Interest cost

Actuarial gain / (loss)
Benefits paid

At 31 August

Page 45

Defined benefit pension plans

2023
£'000
(5,372)
5,588

2186

216

[\ ]
iy
)]

|

Defined benefit pension plans

2023
£000
414
25

439

-

Defined benefit pension plans

2023
£000

(5.161)

(414)

(99)
(227)

392
137

{5,372)

2022



22,

Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
At 1 September 4,626 4,644
Employer contributions 289 214
Employee contributions 899 68
Expected return on assets 202 7
Actuarial gain / (loss) 509 (148)
Benefils paid {137) (229)
At 31 August 5,588 4,626

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Actuarial gains / (losses) 901 3,798

The major categories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Equities 4,023 3,469
Bonds 950 648
Cash 112 48
Property 503 463
5,588 4,626

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

2023 2022
Rate of increase in salaries 3.00% 3.95%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.20% 4.25%
Rate of increase in pensions 3.00% 3.05%
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Change in assumptions at 31 August 2023 Approximate Approximate
percentage manetary
increase in defined amount
benefit obligation {(£000)

0.1% decrease in real discount rate 2% 112

1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% 215

0.1% increase in the salary increase rate 0% 8

0.1% increase in the pension increase rate 2% 106

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 August At 31 August

2023 2022
Retiring today age 65
Males 21.1 20.8
Females 24.0 235
Retiring in 20 years age 45 now
Males 21.9 22.0
Females 255 25.3
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no contingent liabilities {2022: none).
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 243 -
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the academy trust's operations and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector erganisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions inveolving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbaok, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1
April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required and with the academy trust's financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions The following refated party
transactlions took place in the period of account.

Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited, a company in which the Trust is the only shareholder:

- The Trust charged the company £13,675 for maintenance and accounting services (2022:; £14,055) while
the company charged the Trust £26,352 (2022: £26,352) for use of its facilities.

- Atthe year-end the Trust owed the company £5,270 (2022: £2,635) and the company owed the Trust £1,273
(2022: £1,911) in respect of the above

- Atthe year-end the Trust owed the subsidiary £59,567 in respect of amounts received by the Trust on behalf
of the subsidiary and not yet reimbursed (2022: £59,567)

K Flowitt, wife of D Flowitt, is employed by the academy trust in educational support. K Flowitt's appoiniment was
made in open competition and D Flowitt was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment.
K Flowitt is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her
relationship to key management,

J Flowitt, son of D Flowitt, is employed by the academy trust in teaching. J Flowitt’s appointment was made in open
competition and D Flowitt was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. J Flowitt is
paid within the normal pay scale for his role and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to key
management.

J Ogden, wife of B Ogden, is employed by the academy trust in finance. J Ogden’s appeintment was made in
open competition before B Ogden was a member. J Ogden is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a member.

LEGAL FORM

The Trustis a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales and limited by guarantee. its registered

office is South Axholme Academy, Burnham Road, Epworth, North Lincolnshire, DN9 1BY. Its principal activity is
education.
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Long
Freehold leasehold
land and land and Improvements
buildings buildings to property
£000 £'000 £'000
COST
At 1 September 2022 6,842 3,191 59
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 August 2023 6,842 3,191 59
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2022 2,772 427 1
Charge for year 283 80 -
Eliminated on disposal - - -
At 31 August 2023 3,055 507 1
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2023 3,787 2,684 58
At 31 August 2022 4,070 2,764 58

Furniture
and Plant and
equipment machinery
£'000 £'000
120 145
- 353
120 498
74 124
11 5
85 129
35 369
46 21

Computer
Equipment Totals
£000 £'000
311 10,668
- 3563
311 11,021
274 3,672
14 393
288 4,065
23 6,956
37 6.996

Included in cost or valuation of land and buildings is freehold land of £470,000 which is not depreciated.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

COST AND NET BOOK VALUE

At 1 September 2022 and 31 August 2023

The company's investments at the Balance Sheet date in the share capital of companies include the following:

Shares in group undertakings
£'000

The trust subscribed for the entire share capital of £1 of Isle Education Trust Enterprises Limited (registration
number 09937888) on incorporation on 6 January 2016, a company operating sports facilities at South Axholme

Academy.

This subsidiary has been included in the group financial statements by full consalidation on a line-by-line basis

using acquisition accounting.

of the group, are summarised thus:

Turnover
Other income
Administrative expenses

Net profit

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Creditors due after one year

Shareholder's funds

2023 2022
£:000 £000
49 50
35 34
(72) (63)
13 21
586 619
163 163
{40) (51)
(589) (624)
120 107
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C6. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN YEAR

Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Company Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 Auqust 2023

STOCKS

Clothing and Uniforms

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Loans

Trade creditors

Taxation and social security
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred Income at 1 September 2022
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previcus years

Deferred Income at 31 August 2023

At the balance sheet date Isle Education Trust was holding funds received in advance as follows:

Trip income: £100,000 (2022: £46,000)
Local Authority funding £252,000 (2022; £252,000)
ESFA funding £43,000 (2022; £43,000)

Sundry sales £11,000 (2022: £8,000)

Loans

The loans were obtained from the ESFA Condition Improvement Fund.

over ten years. Interest is charged at 2.07% pa.
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2023
£'000

2023
£'000
45

294

2023
£'000
203

2022
£'000

2022
£'000
___45

They are repayable in monthly instalments



Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Company Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum |ease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Amounts due within one year 70 54
Amounts due between one and five years 8 49
78 103

MEMBERS® LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be a member.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

2023

Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total

fund funds fund funds

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Fixed assets - - 6,956 6,956
Current assets - 2,398 480 2,878
Current liabilities - (802) (212) {1,014)
Long-term liabilities - - (203) (203)
Pension asset - 216 - 216
- 1,812 7,021 8,833

2022

Unrestricted Restricted Fixed Asset Total

fund funds fund funds

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed assets " - - 6,996 6,996
Current assets - 2,306 220 2,526
Current liabilities - (670} (5) (675)
Long-term liabilities - - (45) (45}
Pension liability - (635) - (539)
- 1,101 7.166 8,267
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Company Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

C16. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

2023
Transfers,
Brought gains, Carried
forward Income Expenditure losses forward
Restricted £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,636 7,070 (7,110) - 1,596
Free school meals - 50 (50) - -
Coronavirus catch up premium - 56 (56) - -
Coronavirus support - 28 (28) - -
Pupil Premium - 231 (231) - -
Other ESFA grants - 29 (29) - -
Other income - 939 (939) - -
Local authority - 586 (586) - -
Pensicn reserve (535) - (150) 901 216
1,101 8,989 (9,179) 801 1,812
Fixed Assets
Inherited 5,036 - {324) - 4,712
Capital grants 2,104 509 (329) - 2,284
Funded from GAG 26 - (1 - 25
7,166 509 {654) - 7,021
Unrestricted - 167 {167) - -
TOTAL 8,267 9,665 (10,000) 801 8,833
2022
Transfers,
Brought gains, Carried
forward Income Expenditure losses forward
Restricted £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,559 6,931 (6,854) - 1,636
Coronavirus mass testing - 3 (3) - -
Coronavirus catch up premium - 31 (31) - -
Coronavirus support - 91 (91) - -
Pupil Premium - 220 (220) - -
Other ESFA grants - 54 {54) - -
Other income - 439 (439) - -
Local authority 90 436 {480) (46) -
Pension reserve {3,824) - (509) 3,798 (535)
(2,175) 8,205 {8,681) 3,752 1,101
Fixed Assets
Inherited 5,359 - {323) - 5,036
Capital grants 1,879 241 (62) 46 2104
Funded from GAG 34 - (8) - 26
7,272 241 (393) 46 7,166
Unrestricted - 132 {132) - -
TOTAL 5,097 8,578 (9,208) 3,798 8,267

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
The restricted fixed assets funds represent the net book values of donated fixed assets and assets purchased from
ESFA and other government grants, which have to be held for the continuing use of the academy, along with unspent
grants for capital purposes.
Transfer to fixed asset funds represents fixed asset purchases funded from revenue funds,

The balance on restricted general funds represents the balance of unspent grants and other revenue to be spent
in fulure periads, including unspent General Annual Grant.
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Isle Education Trust

Notes to the Company Balance Sheet
For The Year Ended 31 August 2023

C10. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS continued
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Following centralisation of most income and treasury management individual academies no longer have their own
reserves. Fund balances for each academy except central services were therefore ENIL. (2022: £NIL)

C11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingent liabilities (2022: none).

C12, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 243 -

C13. LEGAL FORM

The trust is a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales and limited by guarantee. Its registered
office is South Axholme Academy, Burnham Road, Epworth, North Lincolnshire, DN9 1BY. Its principal activity is
education.

C14. RESULTS OF PARENT CHARITABLE COMPANY

The results of the charitable company, are summarised thus:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Donations and capital grants 524 241
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations 8,958 8,187
Other trading activities 144 148
Investment income 39 4
Expenditure on academy trust's educational operations (10,000) (9.206)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit schemes 901 3,798
Net income / (expenditure) 566 3,170
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